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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024

The Trustess present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of
the charitable company for the year 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024, The annual report serves
the purposes of both a trustees' report, and a diractors' report and strategic report under company
law.

The Trust operates eleven academies (plus associated pre-school provision) and one separate
pre-school organisation for puplis aged 2 to 11 in Launceston and its surrounding area. It has a school
age pupil capacity of 1603, with an actual roll, including pre-school children, of 1378 school age {plus
pre-school pupils at an attached pre-school where applicable) in the schools in October 2023.

Number of pupils (inclusive of

Schaol pre-school/4-year-old) on rell in Oct 23 Census
Coads Green Primary 45
Lew Trenchard C of E Primary 100
North Petherwin Primary 66
Princetown Primary 47
St Catherines C of E Primary 195
St Stephens Community Academy 210
Werrington Primary 58
Windmill Hill Academy/Launceston Pre-School 173
Boyton Primary School 38
Caliington Primary School 351
Lewannick Primary School 95

Structure, Governance and Management

Constitution

The Academy Trust was Incorporated on 1st January 2014 and is a company limited by guarantee
and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's Memorandum and Articles of Association are the
primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The Trustees of An Daras Mulli Academy Trusl
are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law, The Charitable
Company operates as An Daras Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are
included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' Liability

Each member of the Charitabls Company undertakes to coniribute to the assets of the Charitable
Company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease fo be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liahilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees’ Indemnities

in accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy has purchased insurance to protect
Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions accurring whilst on
Academy business. ‘
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Academy Trust shall have the following Trustees as set out in its Aricles of Association and
funding agreement:

* up to 4 Trustees who are appointed by members, currently 5

* up to 6 Community Trustees who are appointed by the Trustee board, currently 3

- the Chlef Executive Officer who is treated for all purposes as being a voting Director.

Trustees are appoinied for a four-year period, except that this time limit does not apply to the Chief
Executive Officer, Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of Trustee, any Trustee can be
re-appointed or re-elected.

The Diocese of Truro (through Askel Veur) is empowered as Foundation Member under article 50AA
to appoint Trustees. The Diocese of Exeter (through EDEN) as Foundation Member is empowered
under article 50AA to appoint Trustees. Provided that the company s maintaining, carrying on,
managing and developing at least one Church Academy in the relevant diocese.

When appointing new Trustees, the Board will consider the skills and experience mix of existing
Trustees in order to ensure that the Board has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the
Academy's development.

Direclors appointed must be fully supportive of the Trust's Christian ethos and values and in full
agreement with the Church of England Vision for Education.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The Academy has Trustee Recruitment, Induction and Training processes available from the
Governance Officer o the Trustees.

The training and induction provided for new Trustees wilt depend upon their existing experience but
would always include a tour of the Academy Trust schools and a chance to meet staff and pupils. Al
Trustees are provided with coples of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and
other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. As there are nommally only
two or three new Trustees a year, induction tends to be done informally and is tailored specifically to
the individual. Advantage is taken of specific courses or on-line training offered by the Lacal Authority,
Diocese of Exster and Trurc and other bodies.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Organisational Structure

The Board of Trustees normally meets once each term, less the spring term when it meets twice. The
Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of the Academy Trust and determines
membership, future growth, terms of reference and procedures of Committees and other groups. It
receives reports including policies from its Committees for ratification, It monitors the activities of the
Commitiees through the minutes of their mestings. The Board may from time to time establish
Working Groups to perform specific tasks over a limited timescale.

There are 3 committees plus a Local Governing Board for each school. From September 2023 to
August 2024 the following committee structure for the Trust was in operation:

« Finance, Resources and Staffing Committee (FRS) - this meets four times a year and is responsible
far monitering, evaluating and reviewing policy and performance in relation to financial managernent,
premises management, compliance with reporting and regulatory requirements and reporting. It also
incorporates the role of staff oversight.

- Learning, Standards and Safeguarding Committee (LSS) — this meets at least three times a year
and Is responsible for strategic monitoring of curriculum, standards and school and Trust improvement
In relation to learning outcomes plus a focus on maintaining Christian distinctiveness and SIAMS
inspection preparation. It also has safeguarding oversight.

» Audit Committee — this meets at least once a term and receives reports from the Responsible
Officerfinternal audit. It also responsible for looking at risk registers, best value and scrutiny of
external financial and other related audit reports.

+ Local Governing Body (individual schools) — this meets formally once a term and informally once a
term to monitor, evaluate and review the policy, practice and performance in relation to curriculum
planning, target setting and assessment, examinations and parent and pupil welfare.

The following decisions are reserved lo the Board of Trustees: to consider any proposals for changes
to the status or constitution of the Academy and its committee structure, to appoint or remove the
Chairman andfor Vice Chairman, to appoint the CEO and Governance Officer to the Trustees, to
approve the Annual Improvement Plan (AlP) and budget. The full Board meets at least 4 times per
year and remain confident this meeting structure ensures effective governance is delivered as the
exiensive termly committee working provides good oversight of Trust short term operations,
improvemeant actions, risks and mitigation and strategic planning.

The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an Annual Improvement Flan {AlP)
and budget, approving the statutory accounts, monitoring the Trust by the use of budgets and other
data, and making major decisions about the direction of the Trust, capital expenditure and staff
appointments.

The Trustees and Board of Trustees have devolved responsibility for day to day management of the
Trust to the CEQ, Senior Deputy Executive Officer (DEC) and Senior Academy Trust Leadership
Team (SALT). The SALT comprises the CEO, Deputy EOs, Executive Headteachers, Trust School
Improvement Officers and the Trust Finance (CFO) and Operations Officer (TOO). This group
implement the policies taid down by the Trustees and report back to them on performance. The aim of
the leadership structure Is to devolve responsibility, encourage involvernent and cultivate initiative in
decision making at all levels.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

The CEQ, Senior DEO, Trust Finance Officers, Executive Headteachers and Operations QOfficer, are
responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets; a summary of this is in the
regularly reviewed Financial Scheme of Delegation. Some spending control is devolved to Budget
Holders which must be authorised in line with the Financial Scheme of Delegation, Executive
Headteachers or Head Teachers are responsible for the appointment of school level staff, though
appointment panels for teaching posts always include a Local Governor, and a panel member who
has been safer recruitment trained.

The CEO is the Accounting Officer,

Arrangements for seffing pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trustees consider the Board of Trustees and the Senior Trust Leadership Team to comprise the
key management personnel of the Trust in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating
the Trust on a day to day basis,

All Trustees give their time freely and no Trustee received remuneration in the year, for their role as a
Trustee,

Details of Trustees' expenses and related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts.

The pay of key management personnel is reviewed annually and linked to a robust performance
management cycle and is paid in accordance with national pay rates where applicable.

Trade union facility time

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant | Full-time equivalent employee number
union officials during the relevant period

1 1

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employees

0% 1
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

2024
The total cost of facility time Is £nil.
The total pay bill is £6.8m.
The % of the total pay bill spent on facility time is less than 1%.
Paid trade union activities

2024

The time spent on pald trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time Is less than 1%.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Readers should refer to Statutory Instrument 2017 No. 328, The Trade Union (Facility Time
Publication Requirements) Regulations 2017 for calculation details.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

There are no related parties which either control or significantly influence the decisions and operations
of An Daras Trust. There are no sponsors associated with the Trust.

There is a formal Parent-Teacher Association associated with individual schools within the Trust. This
body has no delegated powers.

The Trust maintains effective working links with both the Diocese of Exeter and the Diocese of Truro.
This brings benefit In the form of participation, guidance, advice and training to the Trust and the Trust
fully appreciates the benefits and opportunifies diocesan collaboration brings to all aspects of the
Trust's remit,

The Trust completes at least an annual review of its compliance with the ‘must’ statements in the
Academy handpook as part of its risk mitigation procedures. This self-review is scrutinised by the
Audit Committee in the Aulumn term.

Objectives and Activities

Objects and Aims

The Trust's principal object Is to advance and grow, for the public benefit, education in the United
Kingdom, in particular without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, mafntaining,
carrying on, managing and developing our schools, so they are offering a broad range of curriculum
learning for pupils of different abilities, wilh a strong emphasis on delivering ‘capability mature’
learners.

The Trust's vision staterment is:

"To grow capability mature children who are positively engaged, compassionate, compelent young
people conscious of the role they play in society, who are curious about the world around them and
their place in it"

The Trust completed a full board and stakeholder review of its Vision and Ethos in 22-23 year — both
as a Trust and at individual school level. The three schools who transferred into the Trust in April 2024
have reviewed their school level vision and values in line with the Trust vision, This has ensured the
Trust and its component building blocks have a strong shared vision and ethos aligned internally
across the Trust. It also aligns with the published Church of England Vision for Education.

Page 7



Docusign Envelope ID: 7CBOCFCC-1844-4972-A514-DC691B14C19B

An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

The aims of the Trust during the year ending 31 August 2024 are summarised below:

* to continue to raise the standard of educational attainment and achievement of all pupils by
delivering the Trusts vision for learning inta effective curriculum provision

+ to be a key pariner in the flourishing of our communities ensuring pupils, parents and staff can
operate and learn together for the benefit of all

= to provide a broad and balanced ‘capabilities’ led curriculum offer

* Provide a wide range of regular extra-curricular activities accessible by all pupils including those with
special educational needs

* to ensure pupils are effective, emotionally secure and capability mature learners by the end of Key
Stage 2

* to prioritise children's physical and mental heaith to enable them (o achieve their full potential

* to ensure a high-quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and care across all Trust schools

+ to ensure that curriculum design and implementation is effective across hoth the academic and
wider curriculum

» to maintain a focus on equality, diversity and inclusion

* fo provide value for money for the funds expended

« to promote and value the Church of England Vision for Education and to advance for the public
benefit the principles, praclices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in relation to
arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship

+ to comply with all appropriate statutory and curriculum requirements

+ to conduct the Trust's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
openness

+ to positively contribute to the wider educational network through collaboration and professional
generosity

Objectives, Strategies and Activities

Key priorifies for the year 2023-24 were contained in the Annual Trust Improvement Plan (AIP), which
are supported by individual school improvement plans for the same period.

Areas for improvement were identified through internal and external data analysis, Trust reviews In
SEND and school improvement and in response to national changes and DfE led initiatives. The Trust
completed extensive regular self-review using the Trust Risk Register, effective self-evaluation using
the RDD Trust Capacity Framework tool, DFE School Benchmarking Tool and through quality
assurance monitoring on standards, curriculum provision and governance effectiveness within Trust
schools, peer to peer focused reviews, and regular finandlal control checks through internal scrutiny,

During the 23-24 reporting period the Trust commisstoned external reviews on schoo! improvement
and aspects of Special Educational Needs and Disability provision.

internal audit was completed twice during the year focusing on financial budgeting and management
accounts and secondly payroll, fixed asset procurement and business continuity, with reports
scrutinised by Trustees. Two primary schools within the Trust received an OFSTED inspection within
the year — both were judged as ‘good’ overall and one was judged as outstanding in the areas of
behaviour and attitudes, personal development and early years provision.

The findings of these internal audit, external reviews and inspections have informed the priorities for
the next Trust improvement Plan for 23-24 as part of the Trusts normal risk management process.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Key Improvement focuses identified for the year September 23 to August 24 in the Trust improvement
Plan included:

Educational and Achievement Improvement:

« Further embed children's knowledge and understanding of the curriculum through metacognition
using Visible Learning strategies and introducing the Thinking Matters approach

- Improve achievement of vulnerable groups including disadvantaged, SEND and EAL in line with
current guidance and evidence-based CPD

« Confinue curriculum evolution improving knowledge and coherence embedding high-quality
formative assessment In all foundation subjects.

- Use effective curriculum audit and adaptive CPD to structure improvement

» Ensure Trust schools continue to flourish together to meet the specific contextual needs of the
communities by implementing the ‘Church of England Vision for Education’ using the 'Hopes for a
Flourishing School Systerm’ for guidance

- Ensure Trust schools continue to fiourish together to meet the specific contextual needs of the
communities by further embedding the UNICEF ‘Rights Respecting Schools’ Programme

« Extend the Trust Improvement offer focusing on key areas in the DfE Trust Quality Descriptions

+ Continue to develop an effective sustainability strategy across the Trust led by the sustainability
waorking group

+ Provide school improvement to Duchy schools judged as RI (joining the Trust in April 2024) to
address areas for improvement identified by OFSTED

« Ensure effective in-year financial management and budget fidelity

» Review the existing Pre-School Business model

« Effectively action identified financial audit review pricrities

» Extend the Trust Improvement offer focusing on key areas in the DfE Trust Quality Descriptions
(resource prioritisation, peer to peer school improvement support and review and local govemor
effectiveness manitoring}

- Continue to explore Trust future expansion including providing suppert and improvement for
identified partner organisations

Premises Improvement:

+ Implement planned redevelopment of Callington Primary Pre-Schaol to improve provision in EYFS to
ensure pupils realise their potential

» Accessibility improvements to be completed at North Petherwin to ensure fair and equal access
enabling all children to thrive

+ Complete CIF Funded Projects including St Stephens safeguarding fencing, fire precautions and
heating and St Catherine's fire safety precautions

« Complete the resurfacing of St Catherines playground

+ Replace commercial ovens at St Stephens and St Catherines to ensure the effective and efficient
running of the kitchens

« Complete building and roof repairs at St Stephens Pre-Schaol Building to ensure the block stays fit
for purpose
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Safeguarding improvement:

* Following internal review implement improvements {o child protection and safeguarding procedures
{incf, national changes) to ensure the highest standard of care are maintained across all Trust settings
* Review practice in the process of recording information recelved through public protection notices
(PPN) following pollce guidance (2023)

* Ensure the latest statutory attendance guidance is secured in goed aperational practice so the fevel
of persistent absence decreases and attendance is consistently gocd in all settings and is in-line with
national expectations in order to ensure positive attainment, wellbeing, and development

* Ensure the three newest Trust schools are in cyber security alignment with the rest of the An Daras
schools/Central Trust, to ensure the cyber security incident management plan is established at the
Duchy schools and te ensure all new Duchy staff are fully trained on cyber-security risk management
» Following the Government update to the Prevent guidance - all staff and Governors fo refresh their
Prevent training

* All staff and Governors to complete GDPRIrefresher training as a requirament of the Trust insurance
policy

Business improvement:

* Review asset management software (Parago) and train key staff in the use of this programme to
ensure accurate and efficient asset management

* Ensure cyber security arrangements are effective to mitigate increasing levels of IT related risk

* Facilitate effective business transfer by upscaling critical Trust Central IT based process functions
into the former Duchy schools to ensure effective Integration

Local Governance Improvement:
* Ensure long lerm govemance quality and structure is secured through the reorganisation of
individual school local Governing Boards to local hubs to begin In September 2024

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the trustees have carefully considered the Charity
Commision's general guidance on public benefit,

Public Benefit

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section 17(5) of the Charlties Act 2011
to have due regard to the Charity Commissioner's general guidance on public benefit in exercising
their powers or duties. They have referred fo this guidance when reviewing the Academy's aims and
abjectives and in planning its future activities,
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Strategic Report

Achievements and Performance
The Trust is in its tenth year of operation and has a secure forecast number of pupils on roll for the
majority of its schools,

During this reporting perlod the Trust received two school OFSTED inspections. Both inspections
were graded ‘good’ overall with one school achieving outstanding grades for behaviour and attitudes,
personal development and early years provision. All schools who were part of the Trust prior to April
2024 remain good. The Duchy Trust transferred voluntarily into An Daras on the 1st April 2024. One
of the Duchy schools is graded as good and two as Requires Improvement.

TCAF funding was used to review and refine the roles and training for the Academy Improvement
Officers and to increase the capacity of the Trust School Improvement Team. Academy Improvement
Officers have become Directors of Learning and a Curriculum Development Officer was appointed to
carry out this role from April 2024 and an English Development Officer has been appointed and will
begin this role in September 2024,

The Centralised Trust School Improvement Team have been focusing on the two Duchy schools with
Rl judgements from September 2023. In addition, they have been working as school improvement
support at local-authority maintained schools and at a small trust external to An Daras over the 23-24
academic year.

A very positive external school improvement review was completed in June 2024 as requested by
RDD office as a condition of Duchy Trust transfer. The review confirmed that the Trust measures very
positively against the national MAT assurance framework,

Trust schools undertook national testing in Year 4 phonics and the end of Key stage 2 in English and
maths. Internal Key Stage 1 testing, Year 4 multiplication testing and end of Early Years assessments
were also completed across all Trust Schools. Maintaining good pupil standards of achievement when
penchmarked against natiohal average parameters remains a key part of Trust Risk Register
mitigation and therefore is always a focus for Trust improvement work within the year. As small
schools make up the majority of the Trust's settings statistically unreliable data (due to small cohorts)
makes meaningful Trust average achievement data collation difficuit.

Provisional pupil achievement data at individual school level demonsfrates that curriculum
development initiatives plus additional funding for individual tutoring support had made good progress
at catching up core subject learning for many Key Stage 2 pupils across the majority of Trust schaols.

Where there was deviation from 2024 national average attainment benchmarks, this was often due to
the very small nature (10 or below puplis} of the particular cohert in the school. Due o there not being
any external or national progress measures this year it is not possible to benchmark the positive
progress made in core subjects for 2023-24.

Effective Trust self~evaluation highlighted where additional support was required to ensure children
meet key attainment benchmarks, The end of year EYFS assessment indicates the majority of Trust
schools have delivered positive ‘Good Level of Development” outcomes for their pupils. Similarly,
Year ane phonics testing indicated the Trust wide approach and strategies employed have led to very
secure oulcomes when benchmarked against national averages for 2024, Key Slage 1 attainment in
maths demonstrates that all Trust schools are working at or beyond national average attainment and
the majority of scheols are in reading as well. The picture for Key Stage 1 in writing is more variable
but all schools (with a pupil roll above 10) are close to expected benchmarks.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Key Stage 2 attalnment in core subjects was varable In 2024 however most schools delivered
outcomes close to or at national average benchmarks once adjusted for internal context, The success
of the Trust of delivering a holistic and effective curriculum for pupils at every Key stage was
recognised by the two OFSTED Inspections which took place in the academic year 23-24 being good
with some outstanding areas and were also recognised during the external school improvement
review which took place in the summer term,

As part of its commitment to improving outcomes for SEND pupils the Trust completed ancther Jaint
internalfexternal targeted review of behaviour management for pupils with specific special educational
needs. This provided reassurance to the Board of Truslees on the quality of this aspect of the Trust's
work as well as providing further areas to improve. The value of this continued focus on behaviour
and SEND was evident in the schoal inspections in 23-24, with SEND provision judged as being
particularly effective at all schools inspected and behaviour and attitudes at one school being judged
as outstanding.

During 2023-2024 the Trust has further developed its internally designed ‘Capabilities Curriculurm’
framework to ensure greater depth in the breadth and balance of the curriculum. The Trust modsal
exceeds the requirements of the National Curriculum and has been recognised, following inspections,
as being a particularly holistic and child cenired approach to learning. A further deeper evolution took
place which has provided staff and pupils with additional training and learning focusing on meta
cognition and thinking matters skills, The long term ‘Visible Learning' strategy to classroom practice
and staff CPD adopted by the Trust at its foundation in 2014 is continuing to have good impact and
the Trust is ready to apply for certified partner status in 24-25.

The Trust maintained good levels of key staff retention in 2023-2024 with all long-term senior leaders
and business staff remaining in post. This is partly due o the support provided through sffective staff
training in-year allied to an effective staff well-being strategy designed by the Trust Board to provide
concreate and practical well-being initiatives for staff in all roles across the Trust. An independent
external school improvement review and the outcomes of in-year OFSTED inspections evidences the
clear positive impact of the applied strategy. The Trust has also prioritised the three new schools in
the Trust in its training cycle to ensure all staff and governors are up to date with safeguarding,
GDPR, Health and safety and Cyber Security requirements.

The Trust successfully facilitated the effective business transfer of Duchy schools into An Daras by
upscaling critical Trust Central 1T based process functions including financial management (PSF),
Payroll (IRIS), anline payments and Cyber Security platforms. This enabled full integration into An
Daras to be achieved quickly and effactivaly,

The Trust completes annual safeguarding improvements in line with any updated national statutory
requirements overseen by a dedicated Trust Safeguarding Officer. Within the defined pericd of these
accounts staff received updated safeguarding fraining which has incfuded ftralning on child protection
and PREVENT duty. Safeguarding policy and practice have been reviewed and amended by the
Board of Trustees in line with best practice. Safeguarding was deemed effective in the two schools
inspected by OFSTED in 2023-24.

The Trust has continued to enhance and refine the provision delivered through the ‘Woodland Skills
Centre' - further linking the resource with sustainability and climate change learning. As a result the
centre has been rebranded and is now called the ‘Education Sustainability Centre.' It remains
permanently staffed by an appropriately qualified instructor and being accessed by all Trust schools,
plus some external schools to meet the requirements of the outdoor education objectives of the
National Curriculum and to enhance children’s understanding of sustainability and climate change.
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An Daras Muiti Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Schools have delivered initiatives which have increased active and safe travel to schoal, improved
wellbeing and reduced carbon emissions. The Trust's first Sustainability Conference was a great
success enabling children to showcase their contributions in school to supporting sustainability and
enabling them to hear from ambassadors on climate change and further understand how they can
make a difference. The Trust is continuing to work closely with the Diocese of Trure on trialling school
based sustainability stralegies.

Trust Schools engaged with the ‘Cornwall Community of Practice’ for the Rights Respacting Schools
Award. This has lad to a greater understanding of how to embed rights in every aspect of school life,
The profile of the programme has been raised with alt stakeholders. Representatives from the Trust
presented at the Cornwall Conference sharing their journey to achieving Gold level RRSA.

Cyber Security improvement work continued for the period based on the Board of Trustees
acknowledging the national and ESFA focus on cyber security requirements for publicly funded
podies. The Trust has continued to work through a planned series of actions to ensure that staff are
regularly trained, the IT infra-structure is further developed and the relevant IT management suite of
policles are fully aligned to ensure the Trusts future plans can reach the standard required for
externally veriflied Cyber Security standard accreditation. However cyber security is now being
re-audited for the thres Duchy schaools who joined the Trust this year as they are starling from a low
baseline.

The Trust govemnance review for the last period focused on reviewing the structure of local
governance and restructuring local governing bodies Into hub governing boards.

A review of the Trust Pre-School model was carried out with a particular focus on financial viability.
The outcomes were shared with Trustees and inform of the risk management process for 2024-25.

“The =kills from the Trust board have continued to be used to support the effectiveness of Trust LGBs
and their Chairs. This continued with support to St Stephens Community Academy and has developed
over time, with a director engaging directly with the Chair (at the Chair's invitation). The emphasis has
been on helping deliver effective school improvement and challenge and culminated with a very
strong OFSTED result at the end of the academic year,

Each LGB also underwent a skills audit in the spring term against what they cover in their delegated
authorlly. Gaps were identified but nothing that wasn't already known about previously due to the
challenges of governor recruitment, Governance was graded as good in the OFSTEDs carried out this
year. Due to the integration of the Duchy schools, restructured school leadership and recruitment
challenges the Trust will be moving to a hub model for local governing boards from September 2024,

The local governance, supported by Trust governance, was deemed positive and effective at both
OFSTED inspections during the 23-24 year.

Final pupil attendance data for the year for most Trust schools was well in-line with national averages
for 2024. The Trust attendance overall was 93.2%. The vast majority of individual Trust schools were
within the 93%-95% bracket.

To ensure that achievement standards are continually assessed, the Trust operates a programme of
learning refated observations and monitoring, which are undertaken by the school Heads, Trust
school improvement team and the Trust DEOs and CEO. Additional external quality assurance
reviews were facilitated when relevant and findings used by the Board of trustees to prioritise future
short- and long-term Improvement actions.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

The Trust has overseen significant premises projects funded from the national Condition Improvement
Funding (CIF) programme. The fire precaution work reguired at St Stephens Community Academy
was successfully completed. The premises projects to improve safeguarding and fire precautions at
four other Trust schools are underway. St Stephens pre-school was successfully relocated into the
family hub centre with the expectation that this arrangement contfinues into the longer term thereby
reducing risk to the Trust of deteriorating premises condition.

Key Performance Indicators

Currieulum, vision, teaching and learning standards, business operation and well-being objectives Key
Performance Indicators (KFi) were set in September 2023 through the mechanism of the annual Trust
Improvement Plan and through the formulation of annual financlal KPls by the Trustees.

The main areas for 2023-24 was to have a continued positive impact an pupil achievement standards,
improve safeguarding and attendance, develop better self-evaluation strategies and improve Trust
sustainability strategies; self evaluation evidence indicates the following rag rating:

Priority 1 - Teaching and Learning Standards

1.1: Monitoring show staff are effectively using a range of appropriate metacognition strategies across
the curriculum

1.2: Trust monitoring shows provision for pupils in vulnerable groups is effective in raising attainment
and progress across the curricutum

Priority 2 - Curriculum and Assessment

2.1: Formative assessment is embedded in all foundation sublects to identify gaps and
misconcepfions in pupil's knowledge by April 2024

2.2 In -year school improvement and scheduling strategies are effectively monitoring and reporting to
BoD regularly on the individual school and Trust impact when measured against the six
recommendations in the 'Our Hopes for a Flourishing School guidance

Priority 3 - Vision and Gulture

3.1: Effective school improvement modet in place, linked to the Trust Quality Descriptions, resuiting in
all schools meeting national benchmarks and successful OFSTED outcomes

3.2: Schools will aclively harness young people’s passion and interest in climate change and
sustalnability to enable them to have the knowledge and skills required for green jobs

Priority 4 - Safeguarding

4.1: All school behaviour policies reflect the Behaviour in sehools guidance

4.2: Trust monitoring demonstrates that staff and children have high expectations with regards to
behaviour and that all pupils can leam and feel safe

Priority 5 - People and Leadership

5.1: Fulf review of existing pre-school provision across the Trust completed using all avaitable
avidence

5.2! Sl team capacity scalable to meet internal and external demands and priorities

5.3: Trust expansion/growth delivered successfully within this academic year with due regard to any
impact assessment reporting
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Key Financial Performance indicators which were a Trust focus for the year are listed below:

Performance Indicator Priority Target Actual
GAG canry forward (£) 149,000 Nit
Total unrestricted funds balance (£) 380,000 - 500,060 148,303

95 - 96% average per

school rust attendance - 93.2%

Pupil attendance (%)
Ratio of staff costs (excluding supply and70% larger school 75%  Large - 74%, Small
LGPS scheme adj} to income (%) small schools 72.7%

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, considerable in-year review and discussion through its regular
committee scrutiny of available educational and financlal manitoring, the Board of Trustees has a
reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. The Trustees have reviewed on a regular basis as part of its
committee risk register working possible future shortterm financial risks related {o the national
environment of rising casts, such as energy, general inflation and pay awards for staff, Whilst
acknowledging these potential risks Trustees remain confident that rising costs can be successfully
managed by the Trust and therefore the judgement of a secure going concern remains valid,

Strategic review of the national landscape regarding academies indicates the Trust has no reason o
consider itself as not a going concern. With further Trust growth and expansion being secured as a
key goal for 2023-24 the Trustees are increasingly confident the Trust will be on a stronger financial
footing moving forward over the next three years.

The Trust has continued o invest during the period of these accounts into additional leaming
pravision, staff lraining, enhanced learing resources, considerable premises improvement work and
new premises acquisition to ensure it is positively meeting the requirements of its funding statements.
This investment is also ensuring the Trust is effectively mitigating risks identified through its Risk
Register process. Due to recent growth the Trust has reviewed long term best value requirements to
adjust staffing, premises, IT and infrastructure requirements starting 2024-25 to ensure costs can be
reduced where possible.

For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basls in preparing the financial statements,

Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Financial Review

Most of the Trust’s income is obtained from the DfE via the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the
use of which is restricted to particufar purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year
ended 31 August 2024 and the associated expenditure are shown as Restricted Funds in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE which are shown in the Staternent of
Financial Activities as restricted income in the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund
balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges over the useful life of the assets concerned, as
defined in the Trusf’s accounting policies.

During the year ended 31 August 2024, the Trust recelved total income {excluding fixed asset fund
and tranfers in) of £8,448,316 and incurred total expenditure of £8766,716. The excess of
expenditure over income for the year was £318,400,

At 31 August 2024 the net book value of fixed assets was £12,316,048 and movements in tangible
fixed assets are shown in note 12 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for
providing education and the associated support services to the pupils of the Trust.

The Academy Trust has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Schere in respect of
its non-teaching staff transferred on conversion. The deficit s incorporated within the Statement of
Financial Activity with details in Note 24 to the financial statements,

Key financial policies adopted or reviewed during the year include a range of separate policies which
tay out the frameweork for financial management, including financial responsibilities of the Board, CEO,
Executive Head Teacher, financial managers, budget holders and other staff, as well as delegated
authority for spending.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Reserves Policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually. This review encompasses the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the need to match Income with commitments and the nature of
reserves, The Trustees take into consideration the future growth or improvement plans of the Trust,
the uncertainty over future income streams and other key risks identified during the risk review,

The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should equate fo
approximately 5% of Trust annual income. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working capitai
to cover defays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with
unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance, unexpected costs due to external factors (as
evidenced by CV19 pandemic costs) or any alternative reasons which might be relevant e.g. fall in
pupil numbers resulting in losing a class but not wanting to lose a teacher, a rise in pupil humbers
meaning not enough funding to teach the pupils etc. Total reserves of the academy amount to
£43,257,833, although £13,108,530 of this is invested in fixed assets or represents non-GAG
restricted funds. The remaining £148,303 {representing £148,303 unrestricted funds and £Nil unspent
GAG) is the balance that the Trustees monitor in accordance with the Board's reserves policy. The
amount at year end is below 5% of Trust annual income. In order to increase reserves reviews have
been completed across theTrust after the deficits last year. The Trust has reviewed central costs in
order to reduce the allocation to individual schools, School class and staff structures have been
reviewed and actions taken where necessary. The new TCAF grant has enabled the Trust to put in
place better functionality for the expanded Trust,

The defined benefit pension scheme reserve has a negative balance. The effect of the deficit position
of the pension scheme i3 that the Trust is paying higher employers' pension contributions over a
period of years. The higher employers’ pension contributions wilt be met from the Trust's budgeted
annual income. Whilst the deficit will not be immediately eliminated, there should be no actual cash
flow deficit on the fund, nor any direct impact on the free reserves of the Trust.

It has been a difficult financial year due to the transfer of Duchy Trust into An Daras. Reserves for
Duchy Trust were not brought forward at expected levels. Legal and transfer costs were high with no
external transfer fund grants available. The transfer of Duchy schools to provide trust growth was
facilitated by the use of existing An Daras reserves to ensure longer term security.

Investment Policy

Trustess are committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are managed in such a way as to
maximise return whilst minimising risk. Any cash not required for operating expenses is placed on
deposit at the most favourable rate available from providers covered by the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme. Day to day management of the surplus funds is delegated to the CEQ,
Finance Officer and Finance Director within strict guldelines approved by the Board of Trustees.

The Investment policy authorises longer term investment of funds in blocks of £50,000 following due

diligence and appropriate Board authorisation. This facility has not been used since the inception of
the Trust.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the major risks (through termly review of its exiensive Risk
Register} to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial, estate management,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust have been identified through the regular in-year
Trust Risk register reviews were as follows:

Financial - the Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA.
In the last year 94% of the Trust's incoming resources were ultimately Government funded and whilst
this level is expected to continue, there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain
the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

Failures in governance and/or management - the risk in this area arises from potential failure to
effectively manage the Trust's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation,
statutory returns, etc. The Trustees continue to review regularly and ensure that appropriate
measures are in place to mitigate these risks. The engoing training of the appropriately qualified Chief
Finance Officer has provided long term mitigation,

Reputational - the continuing success of the Trust is dependent on confinuing to attract applicants in
sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk, Trustees
ensure that pupil success and achievement are closely monitored and reviewed. Trustees regularly
review the Trust vision and continue to work productively with other stakeholders to ensure the secure
reputation of the Trust is upheld. Two positive OFSTED inspections in 23-24 acaderic year have
significantly mitigated this tisk, plus external recognition from the Schoo! Improvement Review that the
Trust school improvement strategy is highly effective,

Safeguarding and child protection - the Trustess continue to ensure that the highest standards are
mafntained in the areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies
and procedures, health & safely and discipline, strict adherence to statutory and good practice
requirements are regular monitored by Trustees. The Trust has a dedicated Safeguarding Cfficer,
Safeguarding was deemed as effective at both external school inspections in 23-24 and through the
51571175 peer review.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Staffing - the success of the Trust is reliant upon the quality of its staff and o the Trustees monitor
and review policles and procedures 1o ensure continued development and training of staff as well as
ensuring there is clear succession planning particularly for senior roles. Staff retention remains good
with 94% of staff remalning in post from the previcus year, Senior leader retention is 100%.

Fraud and mismanagement of funds - the Trust has appointed a Responsible Officer/Internal
Assurance auditor to carry out checks on financial systems and records as required by the Academy
Trust Handbook. Al finance staff receive training to keep them up to date with financial practice
requirements and develop their skills in this area. Anti-fraud updates are shared with Trustees and
senior financialfoperationa! staff on a termly basis.

Estate management and safety - the Trust operates a three-year rolling programme of property
condition survays which include clear estate management priorities over a five-year period for each
site. Alongside these risk assessments inform the Trust estates action plan for remedial works to
maintain the safety and integrity of Trust sites. The Trust employs a premises consuitant which
includes premises related health and safety guidance and support. This includes regular input on fire
precaution and asbestos management policy and praclice. Alongside this the Trust maintains an
annual service level agreement providing access to an independent, expert and accredited health and
safety team for detalled advice and guidance. Trustees prioritise financial resources to meet the
improvement requirements of the identified premises related projects. The Trust has been able fo
centrally fund major premises work after a number of successful Conditional improvement Fund (CIF)
bids. These have focussed on site safeguarding improvements and fire precaution upgrades both of
which were identified by the Trust in previous years as being significant risk areas.

The Trust has continued fo strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by improving
the process and ensuring staff awareness. An extensive Risk Register is maintalned, reviewed and
updated on a regular basis both through external and internal assurance.

The Trustees have regularly assessed the major risks to which the Trust Is exposed, in particular
those relating to its finances, teaching, cyber-security, premises facllities and other operational areas.
The Trustess have implemented a number of systems to assess and minimise those risks, including
internal controls described elsewhere. Where significant financial risk stil remains, they have ensured
they have adequate insurance cover.

The Trustees examine the financial health formally every term with monthly management accounts
and financial benchmarks/Key Performance Indicators available to Trustees through a SharePoint
portal. They review performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of regular update
reports at all Board and Finance and Strategic Developrent Gommittee meetings. The Trustees also
regularly review cash flow forecasts and ensure sufficient funds are held to cover all known and
anticipated commitments. A series of data dashboards provide monthly consistency in summarising
and reporting.

At the year end, the Trust had no significant liabilities arising from trade creditors or debtors that
would have a significant effect on liquidity.

The Board of Trustees recognises that the defined benefit pension scheme deficit (Local Government
Pension Scheme), which is set out in Note 24 to the financial statements, represents a significant
potentlial flability. However, as the Trustees consider that the Trust is able to meet its known annual
contribution commitments for the foreseeable future, this risk from this labilily is minimised.
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Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2024 (continued)

Fundraising

The Trust carries out a limited amount of fundraising, mindful of the communities within which it
operates. In the circumsiances when fundraising is undertaken, systems and controls are in place to
separate and protect funds. The Trust is mindful of its responsibifities under the Charities (Protection
and Social Investment) Act 2016 and legal rules, and ensures all activities are agreed and monitored
at Senlor leadership level In compliance with relevant legal rules. Recognised standards are applied
to ensure that fundraising is open, honest and respectful, protecting the public and vulnerable
sections of society from undue pressure to donate. All complaints relating to any fundraising activities
wilt be investigated using the Trust's published Complaints Palicy.

Plans for Future Periods

The Trust will continue to strive to provide excellent education and improve the levels of performance
of its pupils at all levels. This will initially again focus on successfully improving learning standards
across the whole wider curiculum by focusing training on the development of meta-cognition
strategies, the Church of England’s Flourishing Schouols programme and ensuring the UNICEF Rights
Respecting Schools programme is in operation across all trust schools and improving outcomes for
disadvantaged pupil groups retaining the key focus on SEND and EAL pupils.

Each Trust school has created a new Improvement Plan for the academic year to support delivery of
its iearning priorities. Central Trust support may provide additional funding streams allocated by the
Board of Trustees plus the government catch-up/tutoring funding to provide additional learning staff,
resources. SEND and EAL pupil provision remains an area of focus for future periods with more
initiatives infroduced to strengthen the Trusts approach to ensuring high-quality provision for these

pupils.

The Trust will continue to invest in improved IT platforms/hardware, plus finally complete an extensive
external accreditation of its cyber security arrangements,

The Trust will continue to aim to attract and successfully high-guality teachers and support staff in
order to deliver its objectives, The Trust Subject Leader Programme will continue to be developed to
ensure Trust schools have internal access (o high quality subject feadership skills. Trust improvement
Officers will be supporting the transition of any new scheol leaders (and scheols) into the Trust,

The Trust will focus on further embedding Its re-focused Vision and Values through all of its activities
and will ensure the strong ethical and theological underpinnings and alignment with the Church of
England Vision for Education. The Trust will work towards delivering the six key expectations from the
C of E 'Qur Hope for a Flourishing Schools System' to ensure the good work of the Trus! extends into
the wider education network. Continuing the much-valued partnership working arrangements with
both the Diocese of Exeter and Truro will stay a priority.

The Trust will improve the monitoring and evaluation skills of its Local Governing Bodies, and
particularly in relation to OFSTED areas of improvement following the successful inspections in 23-24.
A wider package of improvements are planned to ensure all LGBs are supported and facilitated to
compiete their governance delegations, this includes moving to a hub governance board structure.

The Trust will continue to allocate improvement resources to our schools based on accurate
identification of need. Three Trust schools are potentially due a school inspection under the latest
OFSTED framewark within 24-25 academic year - the Trust is expecting to secure ‘good’ judgements
for these schools,
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The Trust will continue to work fowards the achievement of objectives as set out in the latest 3 to
5-year Growth Plan with the key focus remaining to improve the educational opportunities for pupils in
the wider community. The Trust will review its growth plan in light of any national initiatives within the
academy sector within the year. Delivering practical Trust growth or expansion through the transfer of
other Trusts or schools into the An Daras organisation remains a key goal of Trustee strategy for
24-25. Planning over a number of years means this goal is now attainable.

The Trust plans to continue to evolve its standardised ‘Capabilities Curriculum’ strategy further by
improving meta cognition and thinking matters pedagogy to ensure pupils receive a high-quality broad
and balanced curriculum provision. The stated Trust aim of exceeding the ambitions of the National
Curriculum through our own internal curriculum strategy remains a key part of the Trusts long-term
goal. Alongside this the Trust is focussing on creating a longer term ‘ethical sustainability strategy’
which will shape future Trust improvement planning practices by embedding sustainable
environmental opportunities.

Financial resources will be allocated to ensure our sites and building can complete any high value and
essential remedial repairs to key infra-structure issues identified through appropriate asset
management review. Key areas of premises focus will be an application for a CIF bid for heating at
Lew Trenchard and resubmiiting a CIF bid for roof repairs to address the damp at Werringten. We are
awaiting the outcomes to CIF bid appeals for Safeguarding, fire precautions and heating for the three
schools who transferred into the Trust in April, Property condition surveys will also be carried out on
these three schools. We are also carrying out a feasibility study for building nursery provision at
Windmili Hill Academy.

The Trust will also continue on its long-term development of its ‘Trust Sustainability Centre’ which can
be used to support pupils Jearning beyond the Trust alone.

We will be having an External Review of Governance (ERG) led by the Natlonal Governance
Assoclation, as part of the conditions of the transfer of the former Duchy Trust into An Daras. We will
also be participating in an external peer review focusing on school improvement processes,

The Trust will be reviewing its internal processes and structures to find areas where best value can be
achieved as well as improving its internal efficiency and capacity. Aspects of operations to be
reviewed will be dictated by the realisation of the anticipated Trust expansion plans for 24-25.

Funds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others
The Academy Trust and its Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity.

Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware

+ the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought {o have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Reappointment of auditor

The auditors, Francis Clark, are willing to continue in office and a resciution to appoint them will be
proposed at the annual general meeting.
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The Trustees' Report, incorporating a Strategic Report, was approved by order of the Board of
Yrustees, as the company directors, on .. $\24 246 and signed on the board's behalf by:
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that An Daras Multi Academy
Trust has an effective and appropriate system of contro), financial and otherwise. However, such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstaterment or loss.

The Board of Trustess has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEOQ Mr W T Hermon, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to
it in the funding agreement between An Daras Multi Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses
or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The infermation on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and
in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The full board of trustees has formally met 4 times
during the year, Attendance during the year at full meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Meetings Outof a
Trustee attended possible
Mr G Barriball 1 4
Mrs C Paul 4 4
Mr P Hague 2 4
Mr W T Hermon 4 4
Mr S Tavener 4 4
Mr J Sharpe 3 4
Mr | Wilkinson 2 4
Mrs M Savage 4 4
Mrs G Shipsides 4 4

Mrs T Rudge (resigned 20 September 2023) 0 0

The full board maintains complete oversight and good governance by utilising the skills of the
trustees, commitiee meeting structure, the Trust Cyclical Plan and the comprehensive Scheme of
Delegation to ensure all essential aspects of governance and Academy Trust Handbook requirements
are fully covered on a regular basis by groups of delegated directors and |ocal governors. The full
board met 4 times and there is regular oversight of all aspects of the Board's responsibilities as
evidenced by Trust meeting minutes. Effective and extensive committee working each term by
Trustees ensures all areas of risk, mitigation, strafegic oversight, forward planning and financial
oversight are fully evaluated therefore the 4 full board meeting per year are considered sufficlent by
Trustees to deliver effective governance. The Trust Members meet twice in the year to ensure
adequate oversight of the Trust Board; one AGM and one general meeting. The Board is satisfied with
the quality of data it received during the financial year.

Key changes in the composition of the Board of Trustees and particular challenges that have arisen
for the board are:

One Director, Trudy Rudge, resigned from the Trust Board on 20 September 2023, That leaves 9
directors remaining with a good range of skills.
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Governance statement (continued)

The board's work for the year has been focussed on financial planning to maintain and improve
educational standards and the curriculum achieving a further 2 successiul Ofsted inspections;
managing risks in particular funding and the due diligence required for the transfer in of 3 new
schools; further developing the trust's school improvement model; subject leader development and
staff well-being; and some infrastructure works to improve IT connectivity, flre precautions and
safeguarding measures.

Governance reviews

*The previously restructured trust board committees have heen revlewed and considered suitable for
purpose, so they will remain the same. A decision was taken to hold 2 FRS commitiees every summer
term from now on; the first early in the term fo consider the budget in much greater detait and the
second to confirm the budget and deal with the remaining agenda items.

+The skills from our trust board have continued to be used to support the 1.GBs and their Chairs, in
particular with St Stephens Academy {recently receiving a good Ofsted). A review of this work has
been underiaken to highlight improvements fo this support going forward.

*“The Trust is still very keen to keep local governance at each scheol but this comes with challenges;
recruiting enough numbers and experience, and finding people to be Chairs. Also recruiting parent
governors is also a challenge. The Trust is still keen to keep the governance ‘local but has started
work looking into combining some LGBSs inte hubs but only where the schools will benefit from each
other, or have some similarities or share an Executive Head Teacher and so on. Further work will
continue on this next academic year.

=A governor networking session was facilitated in the spring termn and individual training was provided
where required.

+A full review of the Trust Risk Register was completed and updated in July 2024.

*The Scheme of Delegation, Decision Planner and Cyclical Plan was reviewed in the summer term
{as it s annually) and are still considered fit for purpose with the revised committee structure.

*The Trust has undergone an external review of trust and school improvement as well as 2 further
Ofsted inspections providing a useful independent picture of how well the trust/scheols are performing
in key areas of our work

*The Trust continues o work successfully in partnership the Diocese of Truro and the Diocese of
Exeter (as Corporate Members) with regard to recruitment, training and maintaining the church ethos
of our church schools.

Sfatement of confiicts of interest

All members, directors and local governors complete an annual interest declaration (Directors at end
of summer term, Members and Local Governors in the Autumn term). The registers are updated and
published on the appropriate website. Everyone is informed that the registers are live documents and
if there are any changes during the time between their annual declarations, they are required to inform
the Governance Officer so the register can be updated. At each meeting, there is always an item at
the start of the meeting called 'Declarations of Interest relevant to this Agenda' so that anyone can
declare a conflict particular to that agenda. However, should anything arise in the meeting that wasn't
explicit on the agenda, there is still the optien to declare an interest at any time during the meeting. If
anyone declares an interest, this is recorded and the individual does not take part in discussion for
that particular item on the agenda, especially if there is a decision to be made.
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The Trust Code of Conduct for Governance was reviewed in July (approved on 9th July 2024) and
makes the requiremenis for conflicts of interest and impartiality clear.

« Governance post halders will record any pecuniary or other business interest (including thase
related to people they are connected with) held in connection with the Trus¥/school or
Board/committee business on the Register of Business Interests, and if any such conflicted matter
arises in a meeting they must leave the meeting for the appropriate length of time.

» Governance post holders accept that the ‘live’ Register of Business Interests will be published on the
school/trust's website and they will notify the Trust Secretary/Governance Officers if their interests
change and not just at each annual declaration.

+ Governance post holders must also declare any conflict of loyalty at the start of any meeting should
the situation arise.

+ Governance post holders will act in the best interests of the Trust/school as & whole and not as a
representative of any group, even if elected to a governing board.

Trust recruitment procedures also ensure staff or governance post holders undertaking recrultment
interviews must declare any interest, prior knowledge or relationship regarding short-listed candidates
in the interest of upholding clear Impartiality through the appointment process.

The Finance, Resources and Staffing Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees,
Its purpose is to! take responsibility for financial affairs to maximise outcomes for pupils, link growth
with effective financial forecasting, ensure budget planning process is accurate, maintain oversight of
capital projects, manage ftrust resources and manage all staff mallers including recruitment,
performance management and pay.

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Meetings QOutofa
Trustee attended possible
Mrs G Paul 3 4
Mr P Hague 3 4
Mr S Tavener 4 4
Mr J Sharpe 3 4
Mr | Wilkinson 4 4
Mr W T Hermon 4 4
Mrs G Shipsides 2 2

The Audit Commitiee is also a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. lts purpose is to manage
risks, ensure independent checking of financlal contrals, implement reasonable internal scrutiny and
risk management measures, ensure effective control of resources and implement external audit
recommendafions,

The CEOQ attends the Audit Commitiee for information purposes only and is not a member of the
Committes. Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:
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Meetings Out of a
Trustee aftended possible
Mr P Hague 3 3
MrWT Hermon 3 3
Mr & Tavener 3 3
Mr G Barriball 2 3
Mr J Sharpe 2 3
Mr | Wilkinson 3 3
Mrs M Savage 1 1
Mrs G Shipsides 1 1

Learning, Standards and Safeguarding Commitiee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees.
lts purpose is to ensure all schools have effective policies, oversee academic performance across the
schools, ensure that standards are maintained and the curriculum Is developed, that Ofsted and
SIAMS inspections are securely good, thal there is a cohesive trust improvement strategy, that
Christian ethos and distinctiveness is maintained in the Ghurch Schools, ensure ethos and values
promote fundamental British values, ensure communication betwesn stakeholders including parents,
that child protection & safeguarding is effective across the Trust, that responsibilities under the
equalities act are met, and that health & safety measures are appropriate and in place.

Attendance at meetings In the year was as folfows:

Meetings Out of a

Trustee attended possible
Mrs G Paul 3 3

Mr W T Hermon

Mr G Barriball

Mrs M Savage
Mr S Tavener
Mrs G Shipsides

W W W N oW
W oW W oW W

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy
Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that
value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety and
management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust’s use of its resources has provided good
value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for
money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data or by using a framework where
appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value for money
during the year by:
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An Daras Muiti Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

» Focussad in-year and strategic financial governance and budget management to ensure schools
who were academic priorities have achieved a good OFSTED inspection outcome. Princetown
Primary school maintained its OFSTED rating, whilst St Stephens Community Academy maintained a
number of its outstanding judgements in key areas

» Create and deliver meaningful Trust growth and expansion planning which provides longer term
financial security through a larger organisation which was delivered through the voluntary transfer of
the Duchy trust schools inte An Daras in April 24

- Successfully accessing TCAF funding to extend School Improvement effectiveness thereby securing
long-term delivery of essential internal improvement services

« Value for money purchasing. As evidenced by the decision of the Trust Board to plan to improve the
trust premises portfolio through acquisition, significant maintenance Invesiment or donation.

+ Ensuring additional financial, staffing and provision rescurces were used by schools to deliver
enhanced leaming and mental well being support plans for pupils and families to ensure full
acecessibility and equality of opportunity at an inclusive school

» Making comparisons with similar academies using data provided by the ESFA and the Government
to ensure our key benchmarks are within normality bands or have a clear explanation of operational
context if not within the norm.

» Internal reviewing of the quality of Trust wide curriculum provision and quality of learning. As
avidenced by the successful long term-development of the in-house Capabilities Curricutum strategy
with associated resources which benefit all of our schools. This has been completed using internal
resources to support schools with the correct school improvement approach in a cost-efficient manner

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of
internal control has been in place in An Daras Multi Academy Trust for the year 1 September 2023 to
31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Board of Trustees has regularly in-year reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is
exposed, together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented
to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trusi's significant risks that has been in place for
the year ending 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The Academy TrusPs system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular
management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a
system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

+ regular reviews by fhe Finance and Audit Committees of reports which Indicate financial
performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure
programmes;

» setting targets to measure financial, educational and and other performance areas;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

» delegation of authority and segregation of duties;
+ identification and management of risks in year and stategically.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided:
* To buy-in an internal audit service from the firm of Griffin (Chartered accounts) an independent
auditor, to perform in-year checks.

The internal auditor's/reviewer's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and
performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks
cartied out in the current period have included:

* Testing of financial reporting fo the board

* Testing of payroll and fixed asset procurement

* Testing of business continuity

+ Testing of internal financial budgeting and management accounts

On a regular basis, the auditor/reviewer reports to the Board of Trustees, through the Audit
Commitlee/FRS Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the
Board of Trustees's financial responsibilities. The findings of these reports following the completion of
the agreed schedule of work are acticned by the Executive and Finance Officers with progress
towards coentrolling risk and delivering any remedial work regularly reported to the Trustees.
Fundamenta! areas identified and actioned through this process for the period from 1 September 2023
to 31 August 2024 were:

Control issue 1. Management accounts frequency and content: Monthly management accounts do
not include a cash flow requirement as per ATN 2.18.

Remedial action faken: A cashflow sheet was completed and presented to the Board of Directors
alongside Management accounts for February 24 and this was then completed on a monthly basis,

Control issue 2: Accuracy of management accounts: A difference in the Balance Sheet position was
noted over a set period in-year. Most of this difference was due to a variance in the creditor batance.
Furthermore it was noted there was a debit balance in the safary contral account. An adjustment was
needed {o correct this which related to the 23-external audit.

Remedial action taken: Trust CFO to investigate differences and ensure periods are closed down,

Control issue 3: Change in suppliers bank details. There is no written procedure with regards to how
changes in suppliers bank detalls should be handled.
Remedial action taken: Being actioned at October 24.

The schedule of work was delivered as planned and the Trust recelved two reports in year.

Review of Effectiveness
As Accounting Officer, Mr W T Hermon has responshility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the Internal auditor function,
+ the work of the external auditor;
- the financial management and any governance self-assessment completed in year,
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

The work of the Financial Managers within the Academy Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Acocounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal control by the Audit Gommittee/Finance Commiitee and a plan to address weaknesses and
ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Conclusion

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees
is of the opinion that the academy trust has an adequate and effective framework for governance, risk
management and control.

Approved by order of the members of the beard of trustees on ”l“—‘z-&i and signed on its behalf
by:
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As accounting officer of An Daras Multi Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to nofify
the academy trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency {ESFA) of material
irregularity, impropriefy and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for
estates safety and management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the
Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibilities for estates safety and
management,

I confirm that | and the academy trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any matetlal Irreguiar or
improper use of all funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and
cenditions of funding under the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook
2023.

I confirm that the following instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance
discovered to date have been notified to the board of trustees and the ESFA. If any instances are
identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA

* Financial issues

Matter 1: During the financial year the Trusl procured services from a related party amounting to
£4,177 without reporting in advance to the ESFA. Reporiing all related party transactions fo the
ESFA in advance is a ‘must’ requirement under section 5.41 of the Academy Trust Handbook
2023.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees {who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law)
are responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under
company law, the Trustees must not approve the financlal statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming
rescurces and application of resources, Including its income and expenditure, for that period. In
preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charittes SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2023 to 2024,

» make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matertal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustess are respansible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financlal statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the pravention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company
applies financial and other controls which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of geod
financial management, They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have
been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the charitable companys website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

Trustee
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of An Daras Multi Academy Trust (the 'Academy'} for the
year ended 31 August 2024, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Shest,
Statement of Cash Flows and Notles to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland'.

In our opinion the financial statements:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy's affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the auditor
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Academy in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern
basfs of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or condifions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the original
financial statements were authorised for issue.

Our responsibilifes and the responsibiliies of the Trustees with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of An Daras Multi Academy Trust (continued)

Other information {covers the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees’ Report and
Strategic Report and the Governance statement)

The Trustess are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other Information and, except to
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conalusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financlal statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required fo determine whether there Is a material misstatement in the financial statements or &
material misstaterment of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinien, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and Trustees' Repor! have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

in the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or Trustees'
Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires

us to report to you if, in our opinian:

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

s we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [set out on page 31], the
Trustees are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy's
abifity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the
Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of An Daras Multi Academy Trust (continued)

Auditor Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our oplnion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when It exists, Misstatements can arise fram fraud or errar and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial stalements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of deteciing irregularities, Including fraud is detatled
below:

As part of our audit planning we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that
is applicable to the entity and the education sector in which it operates to identify the key laws and
regulations affecting the entity. The key laws and regulations we identified were compliance with the
funding agreement and Academy Trust Handbook 2023 and requirements with regard fo
safeguarding,

We also considered these laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the
financial statements, primarily the Academies Accounts Direction 2023/24, Companies Act 2006 and
Charlties Act 2011.

We discussed with management how the compliance with these laws and regulations is menitored
and discussed the policies and procedures in place. We alsc identified the individuals who have
responsibility for ensuring that the entity complies with laws and regulations and deals with reporting
any issues if they arise.

As part of our planning procedures, we assessed the risk of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations on the entity’s ability to continue operating and the risk of material misstatement to the
accounfs,

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such
laws and regulations. Our procedures involved the following:

+ Conducting detailed regularity testing In accordance with the Framework and Guide for External
Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts as issued by the ESFA, as reported on
separately in our Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report;

» Reviewed Board minutes for indications of non compliance;

* Reviewed legal and professional costs to identify fegal costs in respect of non compliance;

+ Discussed the procedures in place for ensuring the safeguarding of pupils, including DBS checks

* Reviewed the accounts disclosures against those in the Academies Model Accounts 2023 to 2024,
published by the ESFA.

As part of our enquiries we discussed with management whether there have bean any known
instances, allegations or suspicions of fraud of which there were none,

We also evaluated the risk of fraud through management override including that arising from
management’s incentives. We determined that these risks are low as the academy operates on a
charitable, not for profit basis and so there would be no motivation for management to influence
performance for individual gain. However, there was considered a risk of the inappropriate allocation
of expenditure against restricted funds.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the
Members of An Daras Multi Academy Trust (continued)

In response to the identified risk, as part of our audit work we:

.+ Reviewed the materlal restricted grant income sources, Identified the related conditions and
reviewed the nature of expenditure set against it for appropriateness, together with sample testing on
expenditure,;

- Used data analytics to test journal entries throughout the period, for appropriateness;

s Reviewed accounting esfimates and judgements made in the accounts for any indication of bias and
challenged assumptions used by management in making the estimates,

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all iregularities,
including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve deliberate omissions, collusion, forgery, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls. We are also less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report Is made solely to the Academy's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Parl 16 of the Companies Act 2008, Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Academy's Members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Academy's Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Signed by:

Duncan (wslic
EOB3EDEBEQ229 - -
Duncan Leslie {Senior Statutory Auditor)

PKF Francis Clark, Statutory Auditor

Melville Building East

Unit 18, 23 Royal William Yard
Plymouth

PL1 3GW
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on
Regularity to An Daras Multi Academy Trust and the Education and
Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement lelter dated 26 Nevember 2024 and further to the
requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies
Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance
about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by An Daras Multl Academy Trust
during the period 1 Seplember 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified
by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to An Daras Multi Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to An Daras Multi
Academy Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
An Daras Multi Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have
formed.

Respective responsibilities of An Daras Multi Academy Trust's Accounting Officer and the
Reporting Accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of An Daras Multi Academy Trust's
funding agreement with the Secretary of Siate for Education dated 19 December 2013 and the
Academy Trust Handbook 2023, extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure
disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s
ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement
letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, We report to you
whether anything has come fo our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material
respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2023 to 31
August 2024 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors
and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance
engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain
information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a
negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement
and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all
significant matters that might be identified in a reasonahle assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and
propriety of the academy trust's income and expenditure.
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on
Regularity to An Daras Multi Academy Trust and the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (continued)

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes.

« Inspection of the expenditure allocated to material restricted grant income streams

«  Substantive testing of staff expenses, credit card expenses and restructuring payments
- Enquiries of management

Conclusion

in the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attention which
suggests that in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year
from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament
and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

Matter 1: During the financial year the Trust procured services from a related parly amounting to
£4,177 without reporting In advance to the ESFA. Reporfing all related party lransactions to the ESFA
in advance Is a ‘must’ Tequirement under section 5.41 of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023,

Signed by:

Duncan (wslic
s AEBIEDEBEQ224 9tk 2 - <>

Duncan Leslie
PKF Francis Clark, Chartered Accountants

Melville Building East

Unit 18, 23 Royal William Yard
Plymouth

PL1 3GW
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2024
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2023/24
Funds Funds Funds Total
Note £ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital
grants 2 14,371 50,137 72,704 137,212

Transfer from local authority
on conversion or other mulfi

academy trust 198,591 (302,000} 5,347,767 5,244,358
Other trading activities 4 3,894 - - 3,894
Investments 5 89 - - 89

Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy )
Trust's charitable operations 3 315,523 8,064,302 - 8,379,825

Total 532,468 7,812,439 5,420,471 13,765,378

Expenditure on;:

Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational

operations 7 216,586 8,550,130 295114 9,061,830
Net incomea/(expenditure) 315,882 (737,691) 5,125,357 4,703,548
Transfers between funds {480,942} 470,223 10,719 -

Other recognised gains

and losses

Actuarial gain/(loss) on

defined benefit pension

schemes 24 ~ 179,000 - 179,000

Net movement in
{deficityfunds (165,060) (88,468) 5,136,076 4,882,548

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/{deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2023 313,363 {133,012) 8,194,934 8,375,285

Total funds/(deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2024 148,303 {221,480} 13,331,010 13,257,833
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Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2023
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2022/23
Note £ £ £ £
Income and endowiments from:
Donations and capital
grants 2 23,847 61,781 184,342 269,970
Other trading activities 4 5,012 - - 5012
Investments 5 118 - - 118
Charitable acfiviies:
Funding for the Academy
Trust's charitable operations 3 201,324 6,318,552 - 6,519,876
Total 230,301 6,380,333 184,342 6,794,976
Expenditure on:
Charitable activifies:
Academy trust educational
operations 7 172,948 8,724,501 297,017 7,194,466
Net incomef{expenditure) 57,363 (344,168) (112,675) (399,490)
Transfers between funds (36,646} 36,646 - -
Other recognised gains /
{losses):
Actuarial {losses)/ gains on
defined benefit pension
schemes 24 - 692,000 - 692,000
Net movement in
funds/{deficit) 20,707 384,478 (112,675) 292,510
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds/(deficit) brought
forward at 1 September
2022 292,656 (517,490) 8,307,609 8,082,775
Total funds/{deficit) carried
forward at 31 August 2023 313,363 {133,012) 8,194,934 8,375,285
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2024

Company Number: 08156855

Note
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12
Current assets
Stocks 13
Debtors 14
Cash at bank and in hand
Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 24
Total net assets
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
Restricted general fund 18
Restricted fixed asset fund 16
Pension reserve 16
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund 16

Total funds

2024 2023

£ E
12,316,048 7,049,622
10,549 5,828
1,220,880 1,505,520
863,796 818,322
2,095,225 2,329,670
(828,440) {771,007)
1,266,785 1,558,663
13,582,833 8,608,285
13,582,833 8,608,285
(325,000) (233,000)
13,257,833 8,375,285
103,520 99,988
13,331,010 8,194,934
(325,000) (233,000)
13,109,530 8,061,922
148,303 313,363
13,257,833 8,375,285

The ﬁnanfial statements on pages 38 to 89 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue

4. and are signed on their behalf by:
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2024

2024 2023
Note £ £
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 19 401,102 1,021,133
Cash flows from investing aclivities 20 (355,628) (910,844}
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 45,474 110,289
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 818,322 708,033
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 29 863,756 818,322
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting poficies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncettainty is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Irefand (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland
(Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 fo 2024 issued by ESFA, the
Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

An Daras Mulli Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the company to continue as a going concern, The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financlal statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the geing concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Income
All inceming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitiement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a recsivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended durlng the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received In advance of maeting any
performance-related conditions, there is nol unconditional entilement to the income and its
recognition Is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related
conditions are met, Where entitlement occurs before income is recelved, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it Is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised
as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entilement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions)
where the receipt is prabable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised In the peried it is receivable and to the
extent the academy trust has provided the goods or services,

Transfer of existing academies into the frust

Where assets and liabliitles are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the academy
trust, the transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the
point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass fo the academy trust. An equal amount of income
Is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into the academy trust within donations and
capital grant income to the net assets acquired.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a fransfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the abligation can be measured refiably. Expenditure is classified by acfivity. The costs of
each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
invaived in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are aliocated directly
to that activity. Shared cosls which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes
and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable {rading.

Charifable activities

These are cosls incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relaling to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the Academy Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payble by the
insitution with whom the funds are deposited.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Tangible fixed assets
Assels costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed asssts and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private seclor, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund
in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward In the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation Is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
write off the cost of each asset over its expected usefuf lives, per the table below,

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Freehold property 2% straight line, land not depreciated
Long-term leasehold property 2% - 6% slraight line, land 125 vears
Short-term property 850% straight line

Furniture and equipment 20% straight line

Computer equipment 33% straight line

Motor vehicles 20% straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events ar changss in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalis batween the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Where the Academy Trust has been granted use of the school bulldings from the Diocese under
Supplemental Agreements, the Academies Accounts Direction presecribes that under this agreement
the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the Diocese. Work completed to improve these assets
is capitalised and depreciated over the period the Trust has unconditional control of the asset,
normally two years. A donation from the Diocese has been recognised equal to the deemed rental
expenses, based on the rateable value of the buiuildings.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of & past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amaunt
of the seitlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy
trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for
the goods or services it must provide.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result
of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision Is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-fax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assels
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and thelr measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financlal liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 15, Taxation and social security are not included in the
financial instruments disclasure definition. Deferred income is not deemed fo be a financial liabllity, as
the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument.

Stock

Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value after
making due allowance for obsolete and slow-moving stocks. Cost is based on the cost of purchases
on a first in first out basis,

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquld investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the depasit or similar account and
cash on deposit that has a notice period of less than 30 days.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance
Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of & charitable company for UK corporation tax
pUrposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital
gains received within categories covered by Chapler 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or
Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains
are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Pension benefits .

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme (“I'PS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme {'LGPS'}. These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substanfially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The confributions are
determined by the Government Actuary based on guadrennial valuations using a prospective unit
credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assefs to assign
between employars. Consequently, The TPS is treated as a defned contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised In the period to which they relate,

The LGPS is a funded muiti-employer scheme, and the assets are held separately from those of the
Academy Trus! In separate fiustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair
value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net incomef{expenditure) are
the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments, They are included as part of staff cosis as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interast cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses,

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charliable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed assef funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Department for
Education.

Transfers are made between restricted funds and restricted fixed asset funds where restricled funds
are used {o purchase fixed assets.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Critical aceounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of agsets and fiabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income} for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valulng the pensions
liability at 31 August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach
and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of judgement

The Academy Trust obtains use of fixed assels as a lessee. The classification of such leases as
operating or finance lease requires the Academy Trust to determine, based on an evaluation of the
terms and conditions of the arrangements, whether it retains or acguires the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these assets and accordingly whether the lease requires an asset and liability
to be recognised in the Balance Sheet.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset 2023/24 2022/23
funds funds funds Total Total
E £ £ £ £
Other voluntary
income
Capital grants - - 72,704 72,704 184,342
Other donations 14,371 50,137 - 64,508 85,628
14,371 50,137 72,704 137,212 269,970
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August
2024 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023124 2022/23

E £ £ £

DfE/ESFA revenue grants

General Annual Grant - 6,008,107 6,008,107 4,747,768
Cther DfE grants - 387,841 387,841 252,865
Pupil premium - 431,148 431,149 385,055
UHFSM - 135,862 135,862 101,201
Sports and PE strategy funding - 157,324 157,324 135,850

- 7,118,283 7,118,283 5,622,739

Other government

grants

High needs - 356,918 356,918 236,737

Other Iocal authority “ 519,464 519,464 327,966

- 876,382 876,382 564,703

Covid-19 additional funding

(DFE/ESFA)

Catch-up premium - - - 37,118

Other income from the academy

frust's educational operations

Sales to students 79,207 - 79,207 65,540

Other 181,215 89,637 250,852 196,126

Nursery income 55,101 - 55,101 33,649
315,523 89,637 385,160 205,315

Total granis 315,523 8,064,302 8,379,825 6,519,876
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4 Other trading activities

Unrestricted 2023/24 2022i23
funds Total Total
E £ £
Other trading activities 3,894 3,894 5,012
§ Investment income
Unrestricted 2023124 202223
funds Total Total
E £ £
Investments 89 89 118
6 Expenditure
Non Pay Expenditure
2023/24 2022{23
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Academy trust's
educational
operations
Direct costs 5,780,971 295114 629,343 6,705,428 5,175,855
Altocated support
costs 987,258 500,549 859,595 2,356,402 2,018,611
6,768,229 804,663 1,488,938 9,061,830 7,194,466
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2024 (continued)

& Expenditure (continued)

Net incomef(expenditure) for the year includes:

2023/24 2022/23
£ £
Operating lease rentals 55,089 75,548
Depreciation 295,114 297,017
Fees payable to auditor - audit 19,700 13,750
- other audit services 5,885 5475
7 Charitable activities
Total Total
2023/24 202223
£ £
Direct costs - educational operations 6,705,428 §,175,855
Support costs - educational operations 2,356,402 2,018,611
9,061,830 7,184,468
Educational Total Total
operations 2023124 2022/23
£ £ £
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 987,258 987,258 824,409
Technology costs 272,875 272,875 187,843
Premises costs 509,549 508,549 520,886
Legal costs - other 28,948 28,948 1,736
Other support costs 506,290 506,290 460,625
Governance costs 51,482 51,482 23,012
Total support costs 2,356,402 2,356 402 2,018,611
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2024 (continued)

8 Staff
Staff costs and employee benefits
2023/24 2022/23
£ £
Staff costs during the year were:
Wages and salaries 4,985,670 3,899,053
Social security costs 422,119 319,921
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 1,150,661 908,044
6,538,450 5,127,018
Supply staff costs 207,779 137,653
Staff restructuring costs 22,000 13,000
6,768,229 5,277,671
2023/24 2022123
£ £
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments - 11,132
Severance payments 22,000 1,868
22,000 13,000

0 - £25,000

Speclal staff severance payments

Included in staff restructuring costs are special severance payments totalfing £22,000 (2023: £1,868).

Individually, the payments were £18,000 and £3,000.

Staff numbers

The average number of persons {including senior management team) employed hy the Academy

Trust during the year expressed as headcount was as follows:

2023/24 2022{23
No No
Charitable Activities
Teachers 61 52
Educational support 135 111
Management 13 9
Administration and support 23 21
232 193
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§ Staff (continued)

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and employer
natlonal insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

2023/24 2022/23
No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 4 3
E£70,001 - £80,000 1 -
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior
management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel benefits
(including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by
key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £1,180,012 (2023:
£834,640). The Trust now considers 18 employees (2023: 14) key management, due to the increase
in schools in the Trust.

9 Central services
The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

* Finance and administration

* Insurance brokering

« Governance and clerking support

* Premises management and compllance
* Human rescurces management

+ Bchool improvement services

» Centralised leadership

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

The costs of pravision of central services is recharged to the academies based upon % of set grant
income streams (4-13%) and allecation of school specific work,

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:
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9 GCentral services {continued}

2023124 2022(23
£ £
St Stephens Community Academy 162,467 167,419
Windmill Hill Academy 105,004 113,926
Werrington Primary School 24,165 38,334
North Petherwin Primary School 26,004 34,939
5t Catherine's C of E School 125,406 124,424
Lew Trenchard C of E Primary School 61,498 48,053
Coads Green Primary School 11,632 33,315
Princetown Community Primary School 48,859 32,446
Boyton Community Primary School 10,000 -
Lewannick Community Primary School 25,000 -
Callington Primary School 87,500 -
667,535 592,856

10 Related party transactions - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been pald remuneration or has received other benefits from employment
with the Academy Trust. The principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of
employment.

The value of Trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

Mr W T Hermon (Staff Accounting Officer):

Remuneration: £95,000 - £100,000 (2023 - £90,000 - £85,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £25,000 - £30,000 {2023 - £20,000 - £25,000)

Mrs C Paul (Staff Trustee):
Rernuneration: £10,000 - £15,000 (2023 - £10,000 - £15,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £0 - £5,000 (2023 - £0 - £5,000)
During the year ended 31 August 2024, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £372 (2023 - £533)
were reimbursed or paid directly to 1 trustees (2023 - 1),
Other related party transactions involving the Trustees are set out in note 25.

11 Trustees' and officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to
protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring
whilst on Academy Trust business. The Insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim.
The cost of this Insurance is included in the total insurance cost.
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12 Tangible fixed assets
Freehold Leasehold Furniture

land and land and and Computer Motor 2023/24
buildings  buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September
2023 4,972,030 2,850,523 240,808 422,963 - 8,486,324
Transfers from
other MAT 8,133,815 - 480,312 280,085 44,255 6,918,277
Additions 333,556 50,418 10,442 8,676 24,828 427,921
At 31 August
2024 11,439,201 2,800,842 731,562 691,734 69,083 15,832,522
Depreciation
At 1 September
2023 562,591 406,851 150,643 316,617 - 1,438,702
Transfers from
other MAT 1,012,278 - 470,280 260,008 42,092 1,784,658
Charge for the
year 109,134 82,258 28,643 63,934 1,145 295,114
At 31 August
2024 1,684,003 499 109 849,566 640,559 43,237 3,518,474
Net book value
At 31 August
2024 9,765,198 2,401,833 81,996 51,175 25,846 12,316,048
At 31 August
2023 4,409,439 2443672 80,165 106,346 - 7,049,622
13 Stock
2024 2023
£ £
Stocks 10,549 5,828
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14 Debtors
2024 2023
£ £
Trade debtors 16,071 0,395
Prepayments 177,999 159,166
Accrued grant and other income 832,815 1,163,340
VAT recoverable 187,549 135,952
Other debtors 6,646 47,667
1,220,880 1,505,520
15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2024 2023
£ £
Trade creditors 366,258 501,468
Cther taxation and social security 110,283 72,048
Other creditors 28,801 9,596
Pension scheme creditor 160,831 85,945
Accruals 65,643 23,800
Deferred income 96,814 68,152
828,440 771,007
2024 2023
£ £
Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2023 68,152 78,155
Resources deferred in the peried 96,614 68,152
Amounts released from previous periods {(68,152) (78,155)
Deferred income at 31 August 2024 96,614 68,152

At the balance sheet date the Academy Trust was holding funds received in advance predominantly
for Universal Infant Free School Meals Funding.
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16 Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance
1 losses at 31
Septemhber  Incoming Resources and August
2023  resources expended transfers 2024
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted funds
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant 96,966 6,006,107 (8,310,0866) 206,993 -
UIFSM - 135,862 (135,862) - -
Pupil Premium - 431,149 (472,126) 40,977 -
High Needs - 356,918 (546,344) 189,426 -
Sports and PE Grant - 157,324 (157,324) - -
Other 3,022 411,705 (447,554) 32,827 -
Nursery funding - 462,574 (447,872) - 14,702
TCAF - 152,800 (63,882} - 88,818
Total restiicted general funds 99,988 8,114,433 (8,581,130) 470,223 103,520
Restricted fixed assef funds
Transfer on Conversion 4,315,623 - (74,350) ~  4,241273
Transfer from other MAT - 5,248,494 (33,652) - 5,214,842
GAG/Other fixed assets 37,583 - (6,015) - 31,568
Develved Formula Capital 273,404 58,112 (41,438) - 290,080
Condition Improvement Fund 3,227,500 - (81,401} - 3,146,099
Other 330,231 113,865 (68,003) 10,719 396,812
Donations 10,593 - (257) - 10,336
Total restricted fixed asset
funds B,194,834 5420471 (295,114) 10,719 13,331,010
Pension reserve funds
Pension Reserve (233,000) (302,000) 31,000 179,000 {325,000)
Total restricted funds 8,081,822 13,232,910  (8,845,244) 669942 13,109,530
Unrestricted general funds
General 313,363 532,468 (216,586} (480,942) 148,303
Total unrestricted funds 313,363 532 468 {218,586) (480,842) 148,303
Total funds 8,375,285 13,765,378 (9,061,830} 178,000 13,257,833
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16 Funds {continued)

The academy trust is not subject to GAG carried forward limits.

The trust has recognised the following transfers during the year:
(1) Transfer from unrestricted to fund overspend on other restricted grants

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General Annual Grant - Income from the ESFA which is to be used for the normal running costs of the
Academy Trust, including education and support costs.

UIFSM - This represents funding for Universal Infant Free School Meals.

Pupil Premium - Pupil Premium represents funding received from the ESFA for children that gualify for
free scheol meals to enable the Academt Trust to address the current underlying inequalities between
those children and their wealthier peers.

High Needs - Funding received by the Local Authority to fund further support for students with
additional needs.

Sports & PE Grant - This represents funding received from the ESFA and must be used to fund
improvements to the provision of PE and sport far the benefit of primary aged pupils, so that they
develop healthy lifestyles.

Nursery - Grant received from local authority for nursery provision,

TCAF - Funding to asslst multi academy trusts expand capacily to take on additional schools.

Pension reserve - This represents the Academy Trust's share of assels and Habilities in the Local

Government Pension scheme. As with most pension schemes this is currently in deficlt due to an
excess of scheme liabilities over scheme assets which was Inherited on converstion to an Academy.
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16 Funds (continued)
Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Gains,
1 losses  Balance at
September Incoming Resources and 31 August
2022 resources expended transfers 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted funds
Resiricted general funds
General Annuat Grant 194,343 4,749,326  (4,874,585) 27,882 96,966
UIFSM - 101,201 (101,201) - -
Pupil Premium - 385,056 (385,056) - -
High Needs - 150,140 {150,140} - -
Sports and PE Grant 71,140 135,850 (160,604) (46,386) -
Other 34,027 719,883 (806,038) 55,150 3,022
Supplementary grant - 138,877 (138,877) - -
Total restricted general funds 299,510 6,380,333 (6,816,501) 36,646 99,988
Restricted fixed assef funds
Transfer on Conversion 4,390,239 - (74,616) - 4,315,823
GAG/Other fixed assets 47,629 - (10,048) - 37,583
Devolved Formula Capital 158,456 170,800 (55,652) - 273,404
Conditicn improvement Fund 3,332,703 - (105,203) - 3,227,500
Other 367,732 13,742 (51,243) - 330,231
Donations 10,850 - {257) - 10,693
Total restricted fixed asset
funds 8,307,608 184,342 (297,017) - 8,194,934
Pension reserve funds
Pension Reserve (817,000} - (108,000) 692,000 (233,000)
Total restricted funds 7,790,119 6,564,875 (7,021,518) 728,646 8,061,922
Unrestricted general funds
General 292 656 230,301 (172,948) (36,648) 313,363
Total funds 8,082,776 6,794,976  (7,194,466) 692,000 8,375,285
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16 Funds (continued)

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows:

2024 2023

£ £

St Stephens Community Academy 173,325 209,082
Windmill Hill Academy (7,207} 7,659
Werrington Primary School 421,003 114,390
North Petherwin Primary School 56,939 31,034
St Catherine's C of E School (11,322) 79,658
Lew Trenchard C of E Primary School 34,585 63,080
Coads Green Primary School (83,045) (71,432)
Princetown Community Primary School 81,225 77,158
Callington Primary School (61,844} -
Boyton Community Primary Schaol 35,501 -
Lewannick Community Primary School 130,877 -
Central services (218,304} (97,279)
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 251,823 413,351
Restricted fixed asset fund 13,331,010 8,194,934
Pension reserve {325,000} (233,000)
Total 13,257,833 8,375,285

Coads Green Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £83,045 on these funds because:

Coads Green is a small primary school and the Trust inherited a deficit on transfer into the Trust.

Windmill Hill Academy is carrying a net deficit of £7,207 on these funds because:

Windmill Hill Academy entered a deficit position in year due to under funded staff cost increases.

St Catherine's C of E School is carrying a net deficit of £11,322 on these funds because:

St Catherine's entered a deficit position in year due to under funded staff cost increases and catering
costs exceeding budgst.

Callington Primary School is carrying a net deficit of £61,844 on these funds because:

Callington Primary entered a deficit position in year due to additional supply costs incurred.
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16 Funds (continued)

To return the schools to a surplus position reviews have been completed across the Trust affer the
deficits last year. The Trust has reviewed central costs in order to reduce the allocation to individual
schools. School class and staff structures have been reviewed and actions taken where necessary,
The new TCAF grant has enabled the Trust to put in place better functionality for the expanded Trust.

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other
support support Other costs
staff staff Educational (excluding Total
costs costs supplies depreciation) 2024
£ £ £ £
Coads Green Primary
School 276,729 45,011 38,337 69,952 430,029
Lew Trenchard C of E
Primary School 447,643 70,693 66,229 112,479 697,044
Princetown Community
Primary School 279,111 35,817 43,870 80,637 439,535
North Petherwin Primary
School 257,811 41,700 42,862 89,417 431,790
St Catherine's C of E
School 908,352 103,993 115,551 181,392 1,309,288
5t Stephens Community
Academy 1,103,709 133,400 96,719 199,161 1,532,889
Windmill Hilt Academy 826,724 109,072 73,568 147 411 1,156,775
Werrington Primary
School 366,062 33,515 68,861 72,935 541,373
Callingion Primary
School 672,447 115,094 32,709 71,652 891,902
Boyton Community
Primary School 94,788 15,087 13,024 20,885 143,784
Lewannick Community
Primary School 178,369 13,820 18,474 27,848 238,511
Central services 369,225 270,147 19,040 295,276 953,688
Academy Trust 5,780,970 987,349 629,344 1,369,045 8,766,708
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16 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Coads Green Primary
School

Lew Trenchard C of E
Primary School

Princetown Community
Primary School

North Petherwin Primary
School

St Catherine's C of E
School

St Stephens Community
Academy

Windmill Hill Academy

Werringten Pemary
School

Central services

Academy Trust

17 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assels

Current liabilities
Pension scherme liability

Total net assets

Teaching
and
educational Other
support support Other costs
staff staff Educational {excluding Total
costs costs supplies depreciation} 2023
£ £ £ £ £
273,592 44,140 24,348 68,305 410,475
407,038 63,477 68,177 90,808 629,501
261,202 30,905 25,772 86,630 404,509
246,328 38,145 40,952 95,580 424,005
804,041 90,205 94,136 183,054 1,171,436
1,057,081 112,019 60,393 217,790 1,447,283
816,425 101,555 69,011 163,665 1,150,656
337,855 31,020 38,704 77,312 484,891
249,697 312,944 4,085 210,867 777,693
4,453,260 824,410 425,678 1,194,201 6,897,449
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General  Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds  Total Funds
£ £ £ £
- - 12,316,048 12,316,048
148,303 931,960 1,014,862 2,095,225
- (B28,440) - (828,440}
“ (325,000} - (325,000)
148,303 (221,480) 13,331,010 13,257,833

Page 61



Docusign Envelope ID: 7CBOCFCC-1844-4972-A514-DC691B14C19B

An Daras Multi Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August

2024 (continued)

17 Analysis of net assets between funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - - 7,049,622 7,049,622
Current assets 313,363 870,995 1,145,312 2,329,670
Current liabilities - (771,007) - (771,007)
Pension scheme liability - (233,000) - (233,000}
Total net assets 313,363 {133,012) 8,194 934 8,375,285
18 Capital and other commitments
2024 2023
£ £
Contracled for, but not provided in the financial statements 320,400 522,124

Operating leases

At 31 August 2024 the total of the Academy Trust's future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases was:

Amounts due withirt one year
Amounts due between one and five years
Amounts due after five years

2024 2023

£ £
50,323 48,845
122,646 145,806
280,600 318,800
463,569 514,451
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19 Reconciliation of net incomel/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income/(expenditure)
Depreciation

Capital grants from DfE and other capital Incemne

interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost

Decrease in stocks
Decrease in debiors
{Decrease)fincrease In creditors

Non cash net assets received on transfer in of academy schools

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

20 Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments

Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE Group

Net cash used in investing activities

21 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents
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2023124 2022123
£ £
4,703,548 (399,490)
205,114 297,017
(72,204) {184,342)
(89) (118)
(46,000) 72,000
15,000 36,000
- 6,221
460,356 1,148,784
(104,262) 45,061
(4,850,361) -
401,102 1,021,133
2023124 2022/23
£ £
89 118
(“27,921) (1,095,304}
72,204 184,342
(355,628) (910,844)
2024 2023
£ £
863,796 818,322
863,796 818,322
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22 Analysis of changes in net debt

At 1
September At 31 August
2023 Cash flows 2024
£ £ £
Cash 818,322 45,474 BG3,796
Total 818,322 45,474 863,796

23 Members' liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable
Company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they
cease o be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and
liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member,

24 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Govermnment
Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Cornwall and Devon County
Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarfal valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS
to the period ended 31 March 2022,

Confributions amounting to £160,831 {2023 - £95,945) were payable to the schemes at 31 August
2024 and are included within creditors,

Teachers' Pension Scheme

introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed
by the Teachers' Penslon Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in
academy trusts. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrofment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Refirement and other
pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.
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24 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap} Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review Is to ensure scheme costs are
recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31
March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October
2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above
the rate of GPI.

The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

+ Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

+ ‘Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits)
for service o the effective date of £262,000 milion and notional asseis (estimated future
contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date} of £222,200 miliion,
giving a notional past service deficit of £39,800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented fram 1 April 2024. The next valuation result is due to
be implemented from 1 April 2028.

The employer's penslon costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £790,661 (2023: £538,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation Is on the Teachers’ Pensions websile.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded muiti-employer pension scheme.
The academy trust Is unable to identify its share of the underiying assels and liabilifies of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy frust has taken advaniage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted
for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has
set out above the information available on the scheme.

lL.ocal government pension scheme

The LGPS i a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the asseis held in separate
trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was
£510,000 (2023 - £377,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £406,000 (2023 - £298,000)
and emplayees' contributions totalled £104,000 (2023 - £79,000). The agreed contribution rates for
future years are 22.9 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in
the event of an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities
would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came inta force on 18 July 2013 and
on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a
patliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.
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24 Pension and similar obligations {continued)

Principle actuarial assumptions 2024 2023

% %
Rate of increase In salaries 270 -3.80 3.00-3.80
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 270-2.80 2,90 -3.00
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.00 -5.10 5.20 - 530

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality
rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2024 2023
Retiring today
Males retiring today 21.4-21.7 21.4-21.8
Females retiring today 227-238 226-23.8
Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 19.6-22.7 18.6 -22.7
Females retiring in 20 years 24.1-250 24.0~-251
Sensitivity analysis

2024 2023

£ £

Discount rate +0,1% 7,688,000 4,348,000
Discount rate -0.1% 8,044,000 4,551,000
Mortality assumption ~ 1 year increase 8,174,000 4,621,000
Mortality assumption — 1 year decrease 7,659,000 4,279,000
Pensian increase (CP| rate) +0.1% 8,041,000 4,546,000
Pension increase (CPI rate) -0.1% 7,691,000 4,354,000
The academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

2024 2023

E £

Equities 4,495,000 2,312,000
Gilts 2,366,000 1,358,000
Property 460,000 301,000
Cash and other liquid assefs 153,000 81,000
Other 67,000 165,000
Total market value of assets 7,541,000 4,217,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £361,000 (2023 - £126,000).
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24 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities

2023124 2022{23
£ £
Current service cost (360,000) (370,000)
Interest income 285,000 167,000
Interest cost (300,000) (203,000}
Total amount recognised in the SOFA (375,000) (406,000)
Changes in the present value of defined henefit ohligations were as follows:
2023124 2022123
£ £
At start of period 4,450,000 4,590,000
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 2,845,000 -
Current service cost 360,000 370,000
Interest cost 300,000 203,000
Employee contributions 104,000 79,000
Actuarial {gain)/loss (103,000) (733,000)
Benefits paid (90,000) (59,000)
At 31 August 7,866,000 4,450,000
Changes in the fair value of Academy Trust's share of scheme assets:
2023/24 2022/23
£ £
At start of period 4,217,000 3,773,000
Transferred in on existing academies joining the trust 2,543,000 -
Interest income 285,000 167,000
Actuarial gain/{loss) 76,000 (41,000)
Employer contributions 406,000 298,000
Employee contributions 104,000 79,000
Benefits paid {90,000) (59,000)
At 31 August 7,541,000 4,217,000

25 Related party transactions

Owing fo the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn
from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in
which the trustees have an interest. The following related party fransactions took place in the financial
period.
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25 Related party transactions {continued)

Expenditure related party transactions

Buttons Accounting Limited

(CFO of the Trust is a director and shareholder in Buttons Accounting Limited)

The academy trust procured the services of an outsourced finance assistant from the company for
£4,177 (2023: ENIl) during the period.

At the balance sheet date the amount due to Buttons Accounting Limited was £Nil (2023 - £Nil).

Connected employees

T Martin, spouse of C Marshall, a member, is employed by the academy trust as a governance officer.
T Martin's appointment was made in open competition prior to C Marshall becoming a member. T
Martin is pald within the normal pay scale for her role and receives no special treatment as a result of
her relationship to a member.

There were no other related party transactions in the year other than certain trustees’ remuneration
and expenses already disclosed in note 10
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26 Transfer of existing academies into the Academy Trust

Transfer of schools from The Duchy Academy Trust
Value
reported by
transferring
academy Transfer in
trust racognised

£ £
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings 5,121,337 5,121,337
Furniture and equipment 10,032 10,032
Computer equipment 85 85
Motor vehicles 2,163 2,163

5,133,617 5,133,617

Other assets

Stock 4,721 4,721

Debtors due after one year 175,718 175,718

Cash in bank and in hand 393,897 393,897

574,436 574,436

Liahitities

Creditors due in less than one year (161,695) (161,695)

Pensions

Pensions — pension scheme assels 2,543,000 2,543,000

Pensions — pension scheme liabilities (2,845,000) (2,845,000)
(302,000} {302,000)

Net assets 5,244,358 5,244,358
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